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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STA TEMENTS

Our SEC filings and public announcements may irelisiward-looking statements about future evenenegally, the words "believe,"
"expect,” "intend," "estimate," "anticipate," "peat,” "will" and similar expressions identify forngklooking statements, which are not
historical in nature. We intend for all forward-ling statements contained herein, in our presasekor on our website, and all subsequent
written and oral forward-looking statements atttihle to us or persons acting on our behalf, todwered by the safe harbor provisions for
forward-looking statements within the meaning & Brivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1984d the provisions of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the SgearExchange Act of 1934 (which Sections werepaeld as part of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995). Such statements subject to a number of risks, uncertainties asgimptions including, without limitation,
the impact of economic conditions on consumer dehzenal spending, particularly in light of generabeemic uncertainty that continues to
prevail, demand for our products, competitive ctinds, timing of shipments requested by our whdéesastomers, expected pricing levels,
retention of and disciplined execution by key mamagnt, the timing and cost of store openings amiasfned capital expenditures, weather,
costs of products as well as the raw materials irsétbse products, costs of labor, acquisition disgosition activities, expected outcomes of
pending or potential litigation and regulatory ans, access to capital and/or credit markets, Itireate impact of the Ben Sherman sale
transaction on our business and operating resatshee impact of foreign losses on our effectivertte. Forward-looking statements reflect
our current expectations, based on currently avigileformation, and are not guarantees of perfogaaAlthough we believe that the
expectations reflected in such forward-lookingestaents are reasonable, these expectations could praccurate as such statements involve
risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyamdability to control or predict. Should one or ra@f these risks or uncertainties, or other
risks or uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial, matezéglor should underlying assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may vary materially fromse anticipated, estimated or projected. Impofttors relating to these risks and
uncertainties include, but are not limited to, ghdgscribed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors corddiin our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
Fiscal 2014 , as updated by Part Il, Item 1A. Hiaktors in this report and those described frone tiontime in our future reports filed with the
SEC. We caution that one should not place undignieg on forward-looking statements, which spedy as of the date on which they are
made. We disclaim any intention, obligation or digtypdate or revise any forward-looking statementether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, except as requirechioy |

DEFINITIONS
As used in this report, unless the context requitherwise, “our,” “us” or “we” means Oxford Indu&s, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries; “SG&A” means selling, general and auistrative expenses; “SEC” means U.S. SecuritiesExchange Commission; “FASB”
means Financial Accounting Standards Board; “AS@ans the FASB Accounting Standards Codificatiod; ‘@AAP” means generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Statdsglitionally, the terms listed below reflect tresspective period noted:

Fiscal 2016 52 weeks ending January 28, 2017
Fiscal 2015 52 weeks ending January 30, 2016
Fiscal 2014 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015
Fourth Quarter Fiscal 2015 13 weeks ending January 30, 2016
Third Quarter Fiscal 2015 13 weeks ending October 31, 2015
Second Quarter Fiscal 2015 13 weeks ended August 1, 2015
First Quarter Fiscal 2015 13 weeks ended May 2, 2015
Fourth Quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended January 31, 2015
Third Quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended November 1, 2014
Second Quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended August 2, 2014
First Quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended May 3, 2014

3
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PART L.

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net

Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses, net

Deferred tax assets

Assets related to discontinued operations, net
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Intangible assets, net

Goodwill

Other non-current assets, net

Assets related to discontinued operations, net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Income tax payable

Other accrued expenses and liabilities
Contingent consideration

Liabilities related to discontinued operations
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Other non-current liabilities

Non-current deferred income taxes
Liabilities related to discontinued operations
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $1.00 par value per share
Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes.

(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except par amounts)

August 1, January 31, August 2,
2015 2015 2014

13,66. $ 5,281 6,41¢
57,10¢ 64,58’ 46,91:
104,78t 120,61: 107,86t
22,16 19,94: 18,22¢
27,24¢ 24,42: 21,99t
49 48,12 48,92:
225,01! 282,96 250,33t
170,28: 146,03¢ 136,18t
145,01( 146,13! 148,26
17,25¢ 17,29: 17,44
22,75: 22,52¢ 23,53t
— 31,747 33,31
580,31! % 646,71 609,07¢
48,337 $ 72,78¢ 52,44
30,53¢ 27,07¢ 23,65¢
5,01¢ 5,28 4,78
26,78( 24,92 23,54!
— 12,50( 12,36
6,86¢ 17,37¢ 14,88¢
117,53¢ 159,94. 131,68
45,00( 104,84. 106,51t
63,42( 56,28 50,22:
29,70( 29,46° 29,30¢
— 5,571 5,86z
16,58« 16,47¢ 16,46¢
122,06: 119,05: 116,26¢
192,15! 185,22¢ 176,45:
(6,144 (30,159 (23,709
324,65t 290,60! 285,48
580,31! $ 646,71 609,07¢
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Second Quarter

Second Quarter

First Half Fiscal

First Half Fiscal

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 2015 2014
Net sales $ 250,68¢ $ 227,550 % 511,08 $ 470,11¢
Cost of goods sold 99,60: 91,27¢ 205,60 193,47:
Gross profit 151,08t 136,27: 305,47¢ 276,64
SG&A 119,96: 109,94: 242,641 220,78:
Change in fair value of contingent consideration — 68 — 137
Royalties and other operating income 3,62: 3,29¢ 7,39: 6,56¢
Operating income 34,74¢ 29,55¢ 70,22¢ 62,29:
Interest expense, net 737 88¢ 1,517 1,85¢
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes 34,00¢ 28,67 68,71’ 60,43«
Income taxes 12,95¢ 11,38: 26,34+ 24,08’
Net earnings from continuing operations 21,05( 17,28¢ 42,37: 36,34"
Net loss, including loss on sale, of discontinupdrations, net
of taxes (23,070 (2,220) (27,13¢) (6,309
Net (loss) earnings $ (2,020 $ 15,06¢ $ 15,23t % 30,03¢
Net earnings from continuing operations per share:
Basic $ 128 $ 108 $ 258 $ 2.21
Diluted $ 1.27 $ 108 $ 25€¢ $ 2.21
Net loss, including loss on sale, of discontinupdrations, net
of taxes, per share:
Basic $ (.40 $ (0.19 % (1.65 $ (0.3¢)
Diluted $ (139 $ 0.1%9) $ 1649 $ (0.3¢)
Net (loss) earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.12) $ 09z §$ 09: $ 1.8¢
Diluted $ (0.12) $ 09z $ 09z $ 1.8¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 16,45: 16,42t 16,44¢ 16,42:
Diluted 16,54° 16,46( 16,53¢ 16,45¢
Dividends declared per share $ 02t § 021 § 05C $ 0.4z

See accompanying notes.
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands)

Net earnings

Other comprehensive income, net of taxes:

Foreign currency translation gain

Net unrealized (loss) income on cash flow hedges
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net aésax

Comprehensive income

See accompanying notes.

Second Quarter

Second Quarter

First Half Fiscal

First Half Fiscal

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 2015 2014

$ (2,020 $ 15,06¢ $ 1523t $ 30,03¢
23,52( 15 24,75¢ 10¢

(354) 14¢ (74€) (192)

23,16¢ 164 24,01 (83)

$ 21,14¢ $ 1523: $ 39,24t $ 29,95t
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands)

First Half Fiscal

First Half Fiscal

2015 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net earnings $ 15,23t $ 30,03¢
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net caskiged by operating activities:
Depreciation 16,81¢ 17,18(
Amortization of intangible assets 1,01z 1,26(
Change in fair value of contingent consideration — 137
Amortization of deferred financing costs 192 192
Loss on sale of discontinued operations 20,43} —
Equity compensation expense 2,45¢ 1,735
Deferred income taxes (1,419 (967)
Changes in working capital, net of acquisitions disgpositions:

Receivables, net 13,50¢ 18,45:

Inventories, net 16,63¢ 2,83¢

Prepaid expenses, net (2,539 (347)

Current liabilities (15,737 (10,249

Other non-current assets, net (790) (56¢)

Other non-current liabilities 6,904 20¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 72,73: 59,91«
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (41,425 (29,576
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 59,33¢ —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 17,91 (19,576
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repayment of revolving credit arrangements (216,33¢) (191,05¢)
Proceeds from revolving credit arrangements 153,69( 157,86
Payment of contingent consideration (22,500 (2,500
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, includwegss tax benefits 65€ 564
Dividends paid (8,319 (6,93))
Net cash used in financing activities (82,807 (42,05¢)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 7,841 (1,719
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash aadh equivalents 53¢ (349
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 5,281 8,48:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 13,66. $ 6,41¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net $ 1,39¢ 1,821
Cash paid for income taxes $ 22,797 $ 25,87¢

See accompanying notes.
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S (UNAUDITED)
SECOND QUARTER OF FISCAL 2015

1. Basis of Presentation: The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidiat@ucial statements have been prepared in acooeda
with GAAP for interim financial reporting and thesitructions of Form 10-Q and Article 10 of ReguatBS-X. Accordingly, they do
not include all of the information and footnoteguiged by GAAP for complete financial statemerifge believe the accompanying
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statesmefiect all normal, recurring adjustments that@ecessary for a fair presenta
of our financial position and results of operatiassof the dates and for the periods presentedul®ef operations for the interim
periods presented are not necessarily indicativesflts to be expected for our full fiscal ye@he significant accounting policies
applied during the interim periods presented arsistent with the significant accounting policiesdribed in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 .

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to askabilities, revenues and expenses in thesadiahstatements reflect continuing
operations and exclude any amounts related toasardr Ben Sherman operating group, which is cleskds discontinued operatiol
as discussed in Note 4.

2. Operating Group Information: Our business is primarily operated through our TgnBahama, Lilly Pulitzer, and Lanier Clothes
operating groups, each of which is described infmmual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 . Wentlfy our operating groups
based on the way our management organizes the ecamnisoof our business for purposes of allocatisgueces and assessing
performance. Our operating group structure refladisand-focused management approach, emphasizérgtonal coordination and
resource allocation across each brand's direarisumer, wholesale and licensing operations. Tihlesdelow present certain
information (in thousands) about our operating ggwas well as Corporate and Other, which is an@ling category for reporting
purposes. Beginning with the First Quarter of Hi2€H 5, amounts associated with our Ben Shermaratipas, which were sold in t
Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015, are classified sodiinued operations and therefore are excluaed fne tables below.

Second Quarter  Second Quarter First Half First Half

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014
Net sales
Tommy Bahama $ 165,84: $ 157,78 $ 338,51 $ 316,14
Lilly Pulitzer 64,67¢ 46,56¢ 123,65¢ 96,93¢
Lanier Clothes 18,30¢ 21,31¢ 44,47¢ 50,06«
Corporate and Other 1,86t 1,87¢ 4,441 6,96¢
Total net sales $ 250,68¢ $ 227,55( $ 511,08: $ 470,11¢
Depreciation and amortization
Tommy Bahama $ 6,54¢ $ 6,764 $ 13,467 $ 13,42:
Lilly Pulitzer 1,35: 1,09¢ 2,63¢ 2,15(
Lanier Clothes 111 67 221 134
Corporate and Other 392 627 84z 1,25¢
Total depreciation and
amortization $ 8,40z $ 8,55¢ $ 17,16« $ 16,96
Operating income (loss)
Tommy Bahama $ 20,14 % 21,75¢ $ 40,91¢ $ 41,62(
Lilly Pulitzer 19,51¢ 11,17: 37,25¢ 25,97"
Lanier Clothes 1,48: 1,537 3,62¢ 4,27¢
Corporate and Other (6,399 (4,919 (11,569 (9,580
Total operating income $ 34,74¢  $ 29,55¢ $ 70,22¢ 3 62,29:
Interest expense, net 737 88¢ 1,51- 1,85¢
Earnings from continuing
operations before income taxes$ 34,00¢ $ 2867  $ 68,711 $ 60,43
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3. Accumulated Other Comprehensive LossThe following tables detail the changes in our atglated other comprehensive loss by
component (in thousands), net of related incomegafor the periods specified:

Foreign Net unrealized Accumulated
currency gain (loss) on other
) translation cash flow comprehensive
Second Quarter Fiscal 201 gain (loss) hedges income (loss)
Beginning balance $ (29,664 $ 354 $ (29,310
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net ofsax 23,52( (359) 23,16¢
Ending balance $ (6,149 $ — $ (6,149
Foreign Net unrealized Accumulated
currency gain (loss) on other
. translation cash flow comprehensive
Second Quarter Fiscal 201 gain (loss) hedges income (loss)
Beginning balance $ (23,189 $ (67€) $ (23,865
Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes 15 14¢ 164
Ending balance $ (23,179 $ (527 $ (23,70)
Foreign Net unrealized Accumulated
currency gain (loss) on other
) . translation cash flow comprehensive
First Half Fiscal 2015 gain (loss) hedges income (loss)
Beginning balance $ (30,900 $ 74€ $ (30,159
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net ofsax 24,75¢ (74¢€) 24,01(
Ending balance $ (6,149 $ — $ (6,149
Foreign Net unrealized Accumulated
currency gain (loss) on other
) ) translation cash flow comprehensive
First Half Fiscal 2014 gain (loss) hedges income (loss)
Beginning balance $ (23,289) $ (339) $ (23,619
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net aésax 10¢ (192) (83
Ending balance $ (23,179 $ (527 $ (23,70

The change in accumulated other comprehensivallagsg the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015 and thst Hialf of Fiscal 2015
resulted from the sale of our discontinued openatis the related amounts previously classifiec@umulated other comprehensive
loss were recognized in net loss from discontinygerations, net of taxes in our consolidated statgrof operations. No material
amounts of accumulated other comprehensive loss weetfassified from accumulated other compreherea&into our consolidated
statements of operations during either the Secaratt€r of Fiscal 2014 or the First Half of Fiscalla.

4, Discontinued Operations:On July 17, 2015, we entered into a sale and psschgreement with an unrelated party, Ben Shernikan L
Acquisition Limited, pursuant to which we sold 10@¥#¢he equity interests of our Ben Sherman businesnsisting of Ben Sherman
Limited and its subsidiaries and Ben Sherman Qhothil C, for £ 40.8 million . The final purchase geireceived by us is subject to
adjustment based on, among other things, the adéldiland net working capital of the Ben Shermasinass on the closing date,
which is expected to be finalized during the Thirdarter of Fiscal 2015. The loss on our sale oBe Sherman business was
estimated for purposes of our August 1, 2015 cadai@d financial statements. We do not anticipajeificant operations or earnings
related to the discontinued operations subseqoahetSecond Quarter of Fiscal 2015, with cash #tiwibutable to discontinued
operations in future periods primarily limited teetpost-closing purchase price adjustments and ais@ssociated with a lease
obligation of the Ben Sherman business which waimet in connection with the transaction. Changehe estimates included in our
loss on sale of discontinued operations and ligdslirelated to discontinued operations as of Augu2015, including actual amounts
payable in connection with the retained lease akilig, the estimated post-closing purchase priggsadent or accrued expenses
related to the transaction, may result in an adjast to our loss on the sale transaction.
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In connection with the Ben Sherman disposal traiwagve, among other things, entered into a treors services
agreement with the purchaser pursuant to whichrneoarr subsidiaries are providing, in exchangevéoious fees, certain transitional
support services (primarily in the United Statesdhe purchaser in connection with its operatiothefBen Sherman business
following the transaction. The duration of the s#iional services vary but may continue for a peidd up to 12 months following the
date of the transaction.

We have not classified as discontinued operatiogscarporate or shared service expenses historichiirged to Ben
Sherman which we determined may not be eliminaseal r@sult of its disposal. Recognizing these esg@&as continuing operations
Corporate and Other reflects the uncertainty ofthwiethere will be a reduction in such corporatstwred service expenses in the
future as a result of the sale of Ben Shermanrdsteexpense under our prior U.K. revolving crediteement, which was satisfied in
connection with the transaction, is the only ins¢éexpense included in discontinued operationsiirconsolidated financial stateme
as this represents the interest expense diredtipwtble to the discontinued operations.

The following represents major classes of assetdiabilities related to the discontinued operasiamcluded in our
consolidated balance sheets as of the followingsdéh thousands):

August 1, 2015 January 31, 2015 August 2, 2014
Receivables, net $ — $ 14517 $ 11,33¢
Inventories, net — 27,60: 33,46¢
Other current assets, net 49 6,00/ 4,11(
Property and equipment, net — 9,03 7,78¢
Intangible assets, net — 21,63¢ 24,31
Other non-current assets, net — 1,07¢ 1,213
Total assets $ 49 $ 79,87( $ 82,22¢
Accounts payable and other accrued expen$es 6,86¢ $ 13,25: $ 12,92:
Short-term debt — 4,12¢ 1,96:
Non-current liabilities — 1,82¢ 1,61(
Deferred income taxes — 3,74¢ 4,252
Total liabilities $ 6,86¢ $ 22,95( $ 20,74¢
Net (liabilities) assets $ (6,819 $ 56,92( $ 61,47

10
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Operating results of the discontinued operatioessaown below (in thousands):

Second Quarter Second Quarter First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 2015 2014

Net sales $ 13,10t $ 18,69¢ $ 28,08 $ 33,77¢
Cost of goods sold 8,82¢ 9,552 17,41 17,67¢
Gross profit 4,281 9,14« 10,66 16,10(
SG&A 8,37( 12,45. 20,10¢ 24,84:
Royalties and other operating income 78¢ 57¢€ 1,91¢ 1,745
Operating loss (3,300 (2,739 (7,520 (6,99¢)
Interest expense, net (27 33 45 13¢
Loss from discontinued operations
before income taxes (3,277 (2,767%) (7,565 (7,139
Income taxes (640) (547) (864) (825)
Loss from discontinued operations, n
of taxes (2,639 (2,220 (6,707 (6,309
Loss on sale of discontinued operations,
net of taxes (20,439 — (20,439 —
Net loss from discontinued operation:
net of taxes $ (23,070 $ (2,220) $ (27,139 $ (6,309

Certain information pertaining to depreciation amdortization as well as capital expenditures assediwith our discontinued
operations has been included below (in thousands):

Second Quarter Fiscal Second Quarter Fiscal First Half Fiscal ~ First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 2015 2014
Depreciation and
amortization (1) $ — % 75C $ 667 $ 1,47¢
Capital expenditures $ 23: $ 43¢ $ 66C $ 79€

(1) For Fiscal 2015, amounts reflect expense reizedrprior to classification as held for sale, whaccurred on March 24, 2015. No
expense for depreciation or amortization was reizeghin our consolidated statements of operatiobsaquent to qualifying as held
for sale.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with our unaudited condensed chdated financial statements
and the notes to the unaudited condensed congalifiaincial statements contained in this repadttae consolidated financial statements,
notes to consolidated financial statements and Bamant’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand Results of Operations
contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K forceis?014 .

OVERVIEW

We generate revenues and cash flow primarily thiaug design, sourcing, marketing and distributitbbranded apparel products
bearing the trademarks of our owned lifestyle bsamad well as certain licensed and private labeheg products. We distribute our products
through our direct to consumer channels, includingretail stores, e-commerce sites and restayramtisour wholesale channel, which
includes department stores, specialty stores, matichains, warehouse clubs, mass merchants asmhéntretailers. In Fiscal 2014 , more than
95% of our consolidated net sales, excluding thesalkes of our discontinued operations, were téornsrs located in the United States, with
the sales outside the United States primarily beaigs of our Tommy Bahama products in Canadatenddia-Pacific region. We source
substantially all of our products through third tgananufacturers located outside of the UnitedeStat

Our business strategy is to develop and market etimg lifestyle brands and products that evokérang emotional response from
target consumers. We believe that lifestyle brammteducts that create an emotional connection @otisumers can command greater custc
loyalty and higher price points at retail, resudtin higher earnings. A successful

11
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lifestyle brand opens up greater opportunitiesditiiprice direct to consumer operations as wellieansing opportunities in product categories
beyond our core business. We strive to exploifpitential of our existing brands and products asdsuitable opportunities arise, we may
acquire additional lifestyle brands that we beliét/eithin our business model.

We operate in highly competitive domestic and imiional markets in which numerous apparel firmsjete. No single apparel firm
or small group of apparel firms dominates the aplpadustry and our competitors vary by operatingug and distribution channel. We beli
that the principal competitive factors in the agpémdustry are the reputation, value and imaglerahd names; design; consumer preference;
price; quality; marketing; and customer servicer 6hility to compete successfully in design andketing is directly related to our proficien
in foreseeing changes and trends in fashion ansiucoer preference, and presenting appealing prothrot®nsumers. In some instances, a
retailer that is our customer may compete withysffering certain of its own or other competitquedducts in its retail stores.

The apparel industry is cyclical and dependent uperoverall level of discretionary consumer spegdivhich changes as regional,
domestic and international economic conditions gea®ften, negative economic conditions have adoagd more severe impact on the
apparel industry than these conditions have orr dtickistries. We believe that the global econonsieditions and economic uncertainty that
have prevailed in recent years continue to impacioperating groups and the apparel industry abaeycontributing to an apparel retail
environment that has become increasingly more ptiomal. Additionally, in recent years our operadmave been impacted by pricing
pressures on raw materials, transportation, labdrogher costs necessary for the production anctsmuof apparel products, most of which
appear to be permanent cost increases.

We believe that our Tommy Bahama® and Lilly Puli@difestyle brands have significant opportunities long-term growth in their
direct to consumer businesses through expansiostaif store operations, as we add additional Irstaie locations and increase comparable
store sales, and higher sales in e-commerce opesatvhich are likely to grow at a faster rate tbamparable brick and mortar retail store
sales. We also believe that these lifestyle brandgide an opportunity for moderate sales increaséseir wholesale businesses in the long
term primarily from current customers adding tatlesisting door count and the selective additibnew wholesale customers who generally
follow a full-price retail model. We believe thatwnust continue to invest in our Tommy Bahama atig Pulitzer lifestyle brands in order to
take advantage of their long-term growth opportasitinvestments include capital expenditures prilgneelated to the direct to consumer
operations such as retail store and restaurard-buil and remodels, technology enhancements atrébditon center and administrative office
expansion initiatives, as well as increased empbyradvertising and other costs in key functi@ansupport the ongoing business operations
and fuel future net sales growth. We expect thairtkiestments may continue to put downward pressuii@ur operating margins in the near
future until we have sufficient sales to leverage additional operating costs.

We believe that there are opportunities for modakts growth for Lanier Clothes through new progwograms. We also believe that
the tailored clothing environment will continuelie very challenging, which we believe will negalyvienpact net sales, operating income and
operating margin, particularly in the near term.

We continue to believe that it is important to ntain a strong balance sheet and liquidity. We belidat positive cash flow from
operations in the future coupled with the strergjtbur balance sheet and liquidity will providewish sufficient resources to fund future
investments in our lifestyle brands. While we bedi¢hat we have significant opportunities to appedply deploy our capital and resources in
our existing lifestyle brands, in the future, weynadso add additional lifestyle brands to our puitf if we identify appropriate targets which
meet our investment criteria.

The following table sets forth our consolidated rapi@g results from continuing operations (in thags, except per share amounts) for
the First Half of Fiscal 2015 compared to the Hitatf of Fiscal 2014 :

First Half of First Half of
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014

Net sales $ 511,08: $ 470,11¢
Operating income $ 70,22¢ $ 62,29:
Net earnings from continuing operations 42,37: 36,34%
Net earnings from continuing operations per diltbdre $ 2.5¢ $ 2.21

The primary reasons for the higher net earning®s ftontinuing operations in the First Half of Fis28lL5 were higher operating
income in Lilly Pulitzer, partially offset by lowaperating income in Tommy Bahama and Lanier Cl#ral a larger operating loss in
Corporate and Other, each as discussed below.
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Discontinued operations

The net loss from discontinued operations, netés$ of $27.1 million in the First Half of Fiscd115 was primarily due to the $20.4 million
estimated loss on sale of the Ben Sherman opesatidine Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015.

COMPARABLE STORE SALES

We often disclose comparable store sales in oodprdvide additional information regarding changesur results of operations
between periods. Our disclosures of comparable s@les include net sales from full-price stores@ur e-commerce sites, excluding sales
associated with e-commerce flash clearance saledaleve that the inclusion of both our full-prgteres and e-commerce sites in the
comparable store sales disclosures is a more ngfahimay of reporting our comparable store salessilits, given similar inventory planning,
allocation and return policies, as well as our si@%annel marketing and other initiatives for theedirto consumer channel. For our compa
store sales disclosures, we exclude (1) outlee Hales, warehouse sales and e-commerce flashroteasales, as those sales are used primar
to liquidate end of season inventory, which may\sgnificantly depending on the level of end ohsen inventory on hand and generally
occur at lower gross margins than our full-priceedi to consumer sales, and (2) restaurant salege @lo not currently believe that the
inclusion of restaurant sales is meaningful in ssisg our consolidated results of operations. Coaipa store sales information reflects net
sales, including shipping and handling revenueanyf, associated with product sales.

For purposes of our disclosures, we consider a aoalye store to be, in addition to our e-commeites sa physical full-price retail
store that was owned and open as of the beginditige@rior fiscal year and which did not have dgrthe relevant periods, and is not within
the current fiscal year scheduled to have, (1)eocel resulting in the store being closed for aemroed period of time (which we define as a
period of two weeks or longer), (2) a greater th&% change in the size of the retail space duggaresion, reduction or relocation to a new
retail space, (3) a relocation to a new spaceviatsignificantly different from the prior retapace, or (4) a closing or opening of a Tommy
Bahama restaurant adjacent to the retail storetifese stores which are excluded from comparablesbased on the preceding sentence, th
stores continue to be excluded from comparable Stales until the criteria for a new store is nudtsgquent to the remodel, relocation or
restaurant closing or opening. Generally, a steae is remodeled will continue to be included im comparable store metrics as a store is not
typically closed for a two week period during a oefal. However, a store that is relocated genewdllynot be included in our comparable
store metrics until that store has been open imdloeated space for the entirety of the priordigear as the size or other characteristics of th
store typically change significantly from the prlocation. Additionally, any stores that were cldstiring the prior fiscal year or current fiscal
year, or which we plan to close or vacate in theen fiscal year, are excluded from the definitadrcomparable store

Definitions and calculations of comparable stolesdiffer among retail companies, and thereforegarable store metrics disclosed
by us may not be comparable to the metrics disdlbgeother companies.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
SECOND QUARTER OF FISCAL 2015 COMPARED TO SECOND QUARTER OF FISCAL 2014
The following table sets forth the specified litems in our unaudited condensed consolidated semisnof operations both in dolle
(in thousands) and as a percentage of net salesdable also sets forth the dollar change and ¢heeptage change of the data as compared

the same period of the prior year. We have caledlatl percentages based on actual data, but gageeoolumns may not add due to round
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Second Quarter Fiscal 2015 Second Quarter Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

Net sales $ 250,68 100.(% $ 227,55( 100.(% $ 23,13¢ 10.2%
Cost of goods sold 99,60: 39.7% 91,27¢ 40.1% 8,32¢ 9.1%
Gross profit 151,08t 60.2% 136,27: 59.9% 14,81t 10.€%
SG&A 119,96: 47.% 109,94 48.2% 10,02( 9.1%
Change in fair value of contingent

consideration — —% 68 —% (68) (100.0%
Royalties and other operating

income 3,62% 1.4% 3,29¢ 1.4% 324 9.8%
Operating income 34,74¢ 13.9% 29,55¢ 13.(% 5,18i 17.5%
Interest expense, net 737 0.2% 88¢ 0.4% (151) (17.0%
Earnings from continuing

operations before income taxes 34,00¢ 13.€% 28,67 12.€% 5,33¢ 18.€ %
Income taxes 12,95¢ 5.2% 11,38: 5.C% 1,57 13.€%
Net earnings from continuing

operations $ 21,05( 8.4% $ 17,28¢ 7.€%$ 3,761 21.£%

Net loss, including loss on sale,
discontinued operations, net of
taxes (23,070 NM (2,220) NM  $ (20,85() (939.9%

Net (loss) earnings $ (2,020 NM  $ 15,06¢ NM  $ (17,089 (113.9%

The discussion and tables below compare certagnittms included in our statements of operationshie Second Quarter of Fiscal
2015 to the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 . Eathrdand percentage change provided reflects thagd between these periods unless
indicated otherwise. Each dollar and share amawtided in the tables is in thousands except fospare amounts. Individual line items of
our consolidated statements of operations may edlifectly comparable to those of our competitassglassification of certain expenses may
vary by company.

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to as8abilities, revenues and expenses in this tegdlect continuing operations and
exclude any amounts related to the discontinuedatipes of our Ben Sherman operating group, asidiszd in Note 4 in our condensed
consolidated financial statements included in tafort.

Net Sales
Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

Tommy Bahama $ 165,84: $ 157,78¢ $ 8,05: 5.1%
Lilly Pulitzer 64,67t 46,56¢ 18,10¢ 38.€%
Lanier Clothes 18,30¢ 21,31¢ (3,012 (14.7%
Corporate and Other 1,86~ 1,87t (10 (0.5%
Total net sales $ 250,68¢ $ 227,55( $ 23,13¢ 10.2%

Consolidated net sales increased $23.1 millionl,0c2% , in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015 caoethto the Second Quarter of
Fiscal 2014 reflecting net sales changes in eaehating group, as discussed below. The followitjetpresents the proportion of our
consolidated net sales by distribution channetfmh period presented:
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Second Second
Quarter Fiscal Quarter Fiscal
2015 2014
Full-price retail stores, outlets and warehousessal 48% 47%
E-commerce 1&% 15%
Restaurant 7% 7%
Wholesale 27% 31%

Tommy Bahama:

The Tommy Bahama net sales increase of $8.1 millmrb.1%, was primarily driven by (1) an incremental ndesancrease of $5
million associated with the operation of additiohdl-price retail and outlet stores, (2) a $2.4 million3%, increase in comparable store si
which includes full-price retail stores and fuliqe e-commerce sales, to $89.7 million in the Sdd@uoarter of Fiscal 2015 from $87.4 million
in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 , (3) a $lIBom increase in restaurant sales resulting ftben operation of one additional restaurant an
increased sales in existing restaurants, (4) a®@li®n increase in e-commerce flash clearancessahd (5) an increase of $0.3 million in
outlet stores which were operated during all ot&i2014 and Fiscal 2015. These increases in et waere partially offset by a $2.4 million
decrease in wholesale sales.

As of August 1, 2015 , we operated 161 Tommy Bahstoi@s globally, consisting of 104 full-price riesdores, 15 restaurant-retail
locations and 42 outlet stores. As of August 220 operated 147 Tommy Bahama stores consistifg &ill-price retail stores, 14
restaurant-retail locations and 39 outlet stores.

The following table presents the proportion of sees by distribution channel for Tommy Bahamaefach period presented:

Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014

Full-price retail stores and outlets 55% 54%
E-commerce 17% 15%
Restaurant 10% 10%
Wholesale 18% 21%
Total 10C% 10(%
Lilly Pulitzer:

The Lilly Pulitzer net sales increase of $18.1 imvill, or 38.9% , was primarily a result of (1) 208 million, or 41%, increase in
comparable store sales to $37.3 million in the 8ddQuarter of Fiscal 2015 compared to $26.4 milliothe Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 ,
(2) an incremental net sales increase of $3.4anillissociated with retail stores opened in Fisgéaizand Fiscal 2015, (3) a $3.0 million
increase in wholesale sales during the Second @uafrFiscal 2015 and (4) $0.9 million higher salethe annual warehouse sale. As of
August 1, 2015, we operated 33 Lilly Pulitzer iletbores compared to 26 retail stores as of Augugoi4 .

The following table presents the proportion of sees by distribution channel for Lilly Pulitzerfeach period presented:

Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014

Full-price retail stores and warehouse sales 45% 45%
E-commerce 27% 22%
Wholesale 28% 33%
Total 10C% 10C%
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Lanier Clothes:

The decrease in net sales for Lanier Clothes df 88llion , or 14.1% was due to a decrease in net sales in the brandsidess. Th
lower sales in the branded business was primauiéytd the exit from or reduction in certain repséiment and other programs.

Corporate and Other:

Corporate and Other net sales in each period pitin@nsist of the net sales of our Oxford Golf imess and our Lyons, Georgia
distribution center as well as the impact of thimgdlation of inter-company sales between operagirayps. The comparable sales in 8ezonc
Quarter of Fiscal 2015 reflects a reduction in @afGolf's private label sales which was partiaffiset by the elimination of lower inter-
company sales in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015

Gross Profit

The table below presents gross profit by operagiogip and in total for the Second Quarter of Fi2€dl5 and the Second Quarter of
Fiscal 2014 as well as the change between thoseéwods. Our gross profit and gross margin, whsotalculated as gross profit divided by
net sales, may not be directly comparable to tlodbseir competitors, as statement of operationssiflaation of certain expenses may vary by
company.

Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama $ 100,47 $ 97,46¢ $ 3,00¢ 3.1%
Lilly Pulitzer 44,04+ 31,13¢ 12,91( 41.5%
Lanier Clothes 5,80¢ 6,037 (232 (3.%
Corporate and Other 764 1,632 (86¢) (53.29%
Total gross profit $ 151,08t $ 136,27: $ 14,81t 10.€%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®@the $ 714 $ (16€)

The increase in consolidated gross profit was milgndriven by higher net sales as discussed ablovaddition to the impact of the
changes in net sales, gross profit on a consotidaasis and for each operating group was impagtadebchange in sales mix and gross ma
within each operating group, as discussed below.t@hle below presents gross margin by operatiogmand in total for the Second Quarter
of Fiscal 2015 and Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 .

Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014

Tommy Bahama 60.€% 61.6%
Lilly Pulitzer 68.1% 66.%
Lanier Clothes 31.71% 28.2%
Corporate and Other NM NM

Consolidated gross margin 60.5% 59.%%

On a consolidated basis, gross margin increased thhe Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 , primarilg assult of (1) Lilly Pulitzer,
which has higher gross margins than our other dipgrgroups, representing a greater proportioroofolidated net sales, (2) direct to
consumer sales representing a greater proportionrfolidated net sales and (3) improved grossimang Lilly Pulitzer and Lanier Clothes.
These favorable items were partially offset byrbeunfavorable impact of LIFO accounting as coragdo the prior period and lower gross
margin in Tommy Bahama.

Tommy Bahama:

Tommy Bahama's gross margin in the Second Quairtéiscal 2015 decreased from the Second Quarteisctl 2014 . The
reduction in gross margin reflected lower grossgimarin both the direct to consumer and wholeshémnnels of distribution, which offset the
favorable impact of a change in sales mix withatite consumer sales representing a greater piopart net sales. The lower direct to
consumer gross margin was primarily due to a gregatsportion of sales in our full-price stores @adommerce website in the quarter
occurring in connection with Tommy Bahama's loyaltyd and flip-side
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events, a greater proportion of total direct tostoner sales being outlet store and flash e-comnsates and more significant in-store
discounts in our outlet stores. The lower grossginan the wholesale business was primarily a tesuh greater proportion of wholesale sales
being off-price sales.

Lilly Pulitzer:

The increase in gross margin for Lilly Pulitzer wasnarily driven by a change in sales mix towatus direct to consumer channel
of distribution, which typically has higher grossmins than the wholesale channel of distributiomvell as higher gross margins in each
channel of distribution.

Lanier Clothes:

The increase in gross margin for Lanier Clothes pramarily due to fewer allowances and markdowrspamted with certain
programs in the current year as well as a changel@s mix with a greater proportion of sales bdiigiper gross margin programs.

Corporate and Other:

The gross profit in Corporate and Other in eaclopgosrimarily reflects (1) the gross profit of oDxford Golf and Lyons, Georgia
distribution center operations, (2) the impact t#@ accounting adjustments and (3) the impact ghaeconsolidating adjustments, including
the elimination of inter-company sales between afireg groups. The lower gross profit for Corporatel Other in th&econd Quarter of Fisc
2015 was primarily due to the net unfavorable imgéd IFO accounting. LIFO accounting resulted inharge of $0.7 million in the Second
Quarter of Fiscal 2015 compared to a credit of $8ilRon in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 .

SG&A

Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

SG&A $ 119,96 $ 109,94 $ 10,02( 9.1%
SG&A as % of net sales 47.% 48.5%
Amortization of intangible assets included in Tommy
Bahama associated with Tommy Bahama Canada
acquisition $ 392 % 454

The increase in SG&A was primarily due to (1) $rhillion of incremental costs in the Second QuastfeFiscal 2015 associated
with additional Tommy Bahama retail stores andawstnts and Lilly Pulitzer stores, (2) costs toparpthe growing Tommy Bahama and L
Pulitzer businesses and (3) $1.1 million of incegbimcentive compensation in the Second Quarteisoil 2015 .

SG&A included $0.5 million of amortization of intgibble assets in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2@h%pared to $0.6 million in ti
Second Quarter of Fiscal 2014 . We anticipatedhatrtization of intangible assets for Fiscal 2015 ve approximately $2.0 million, with
approximately $1.6 million of the amortization iteld to amortization of the intangible assets aeguas part of the Tommy Bahama Canada
acquisition.

Royalties and other operating income

Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

Royalties and other operating income $ 3,62 $ 3,29¢ $ 324 9.8%

Royalties and other operating income in the Secuarter of Fiscal 201primarily reflect income received from third pagtiftom the
licensing of our Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzeabds. The $0.3 million increase in royalties arfteotncome reflects increased royalty
income for both Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer.

Operating income (l0ss)
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Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama $ 20,14: $ 21,75¢ $ (1,616 (7.49%
Lilly Pulitzer 19,51¢ 11,177 8,33¢ 74.€%
Lanier Clothes 1,48: 1,537 (59 (3.5%
Corporate and Other (6,399 (4,919 (1,48)) (30.0)%
Total operating income $ 34,74¢ $ 29,55¢ $ 5,18 17.5%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ 714 $ (16€)
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 39z $ 454
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiaritided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ — % 68

The increase in operating income was primarily wune higher operating income in Lilly Pulitzegrpally offset by lower operating
income in Tommy Bahama and a higher operatingito€orporate and Other. Changes in operating incoss) by operating group are
discussed below.

Tommy Bahama:

Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

Net sales $ 165,84: $ 157,78¢ $ 8,05 5.1%
Gross margin 60.€% 61.6%
Operating income $ 20,14: $ 21,75¢  $ (1,616 (7.49%
Operating income as % of net sales 12.1% 13.€%
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 392§ 454

The decrease in operating income for Tommy Bahaammimarily due to lower gross margins and higg®&A which were
partially offset by higher sales. The higher SG&Asaprimarily due to (1) $3.4 million of incremen&BG&A associated with the cost of
operating additional retail stores and restauramttiding setdp costs associated with new stores and restalandtf?) higher costs to supp
the growing Tommy Bahama business.

Lilly Pulitzer:

Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

Net sales $ 64,67¢ $ 46,56¢ $ 18,10¢ 38.9%
Gross margin 68.1% 66.5%
Operating income $ 19,51 $ 11,177 $ 8,33¢ 74.€%
Operating income as % of net sales 30.2% 24.(%
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiariuided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ — 3 68

The increase in operating income in Lilly Pulitzeas primarily due to the higher net sales and gnusgin. These items were parti
offset by increased SG&A. The increased SG&A wasarily associated with (1) higher costs to suppleetgrowing business, reflecting
increased infrastructure costs and advertising resgag(2) $1.2 million of incremental SG&A assoaibtgth the cost of operating additional
retail stores and (3) $0.7 million of higher indeatcompensation.

Lanier Clothes:
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Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 18,30¢ $ 21,31¢ % (3,019 (14.2%
Gross margin 31.7% 28.2%
Operating income $ 148: $ 1537 $ (54) (3.5%
Operating income as % of net sales 8.1% 7.2%

The lower operating income for Lanier Clothes wamarily due to the reduction in net sales gengralfset by higher gross margins
and lower SG&A.

Corporate and Other:
Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 1,865 $ 1,87t $ (20) (0.5%
Operating loss $ (6,399 $ (4,919 $ (1,48)) (30.7)%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®@the $ 714 $ (16€)

The lower operating results in Corporate and Otvexe primarily due to the net unfavorable impacti5fO accounting in the Second
Quarter of Fiscal 2015 compared to the Second @uaftFiscal 2014 and the lower operating result®xford Golf.

I nterest expense, net

Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change

Interest expense, net $ 737 $ 88¢ $ (153 17.0%

Interest expense for the Second Quarter of FigeHb 2lecreased from the prior year primarily dukteer average borrowings
outstanding and lower borrowing rates during theoBd Quarter of Fiscal 2015 compared to the SeCuratter of Fiscal 2014 .

Income taxes
Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Income taxes $ 12,95¢ $ 11,38: $ 1,57 13.9%
Effective tax rate 38.1% 39.7%

Income tax expense for the Second Quarter of FR@Hb increased, reflecting higher earnings péytafset by a lower effective tax
rate. The lower effective tax rate in the Seconai@ar of Fiscal 2015 compared to the Second Quafteiscal 2014 primarily resulted from
higher domestic earnings and reductions in foréagaes. Our effective tax rate for the full yeaFafcal 2015 is expected to generally be
comparable to the effective tax rate incurred anFirst Half of Fiscal 2015 .

Net earnings from continuing operations

Second Quarter Second Quarter
Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014

Net earnings from continuing operations $ 21,05C $ 17,28¢
Net earnings from continuing operations per diltbdre $ 127 $ 1.0t
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 16,541 16,46(
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The primary reasons for the higher net earnings ftontinuing operations in the Second Quarter s€&i2015 were higher operating
income in Lilly Pulitzer, partially offset by loweperating income in Tommy Bahama and a largeraijpegy loss in Corporate and Other, each
as discussed above.

Discontinued operations

Second Quarter Second Quarter

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Loss from discontinued operations, net of t¢$ (2,639 $ (2,220 $ (413) (18.9%
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net adgax $ (20,43) $ — $ (20,43 (100.0%
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ (23,070 $ (2,220 $ (20,85() (939.9%

The larger net loss from discontinued operatioas ofitaxes in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015 pvamarily due to the loss on sale
of the Ben Sherman operations in the Second Quafrtéiscal 2015 .

FIRST HALF OF FISCAL 2015 COMPARED TO FIRST HALF OF FISCAL 2014
The following table sets forth the specified litenis in our unaudited condensed consolidated staisnof operations both in dolle

(in thousands) and as a percentage of net salesable also sets forth the dollar change and ¢heeptage change of the data as compared t
the same period of the prior year. We have caledlatl percentages based on actual data, but gageeoolumns may not add due to round

First Half Fiscal 2015 First Half Fiscal 2014 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 511,08 100.(% $ 470,11¢ 100.(% $ 40,96¢ 8.7%
Cost of goods sold 205,60! 40.2% 193,47. 41.2% 12,13. 6.2%
Gross profit 305,47! 59.8% 276,64 58.8% 28,83¢ 10.4%
SG&A 242,64. 47.5% 220,78 47.(% 21,86( 9.5%
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration — —% 137 —% (137) (100.0%
Royalties and other operating
income 7,39: 1.4% 6,56¢ 1.4% 824 12.5%
Operating income 70,22¢ 13.7% 62,29: 13.2% 7,93 12.7%
Interest expense, net 1,512 0.2% 1,85¢ 0.4% (34¢€) (18.60%
Earnings from continuing
operations before income taxes 68,71" 13.4% 60,43¢ 12.9% 8,28: 13.7%
Income taxes 26,34« 5.2% 24,08; 5.1% 2,25] 9.4%
Net earnings from continuing
operations 42,37: 8.2% 36,34 7.7% $ 6,02¢ 16.€ %
Net loss, including loss on sale,
discontinued operations, net of
taxes (27,139 NM (6,309 NM  $ (20,829 (330.)%
Net (loss) earnings $ 15,23¢ NM  $ 30,03¢ NM  $ (14,807 (49.9%

The discussion and tables below compare certagnttms included in our statements of operationshie First Half of Fiscal 201®
the First Half of Fiscal 2014 . Each dollar andgesttage change provided reflects the change betiliesa periods unless indicated otherwise
Each dollar and share amount included in the tablesthousands except for per share amountsvibiil line items of our consolidated
statements of operations may not be directly coatparto those of our competitors, as classificatiboertain expenses may vary by company

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to as8abilities, revenues and expenses in this tegdlect continuing operations and
exclude any amounts related to the discontinuedatipes of our Ben Sherman operating group, asidgad in Note 4 in our condensed
consolidated financial statements included in teport.
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Net Sales
First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal
2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Tommy Bahama $ 338,51 $ 316,14t $ 22,36 7.1%
Lilly Pulitzer 123,65: 96,93¢ 26,71t 27.€%
Lanier Clothes 44,47¢ 50,06¢ (5,58¢) (11.9%
Corporate and Other 4,441 6,96¢ (2,529 (36.2%
Total net sales $ 511,08: $ 470,11¢ $ 40,96¢ 8.7%

Consolidated net sales increased $41.0 million8,. ¥ , in the First Half of Fiscal 2015 comparedtte First Half of Fiscal 2014
reflecting net sales changes in each operatingogrsidiscussed below. The following table prest@gproportion of our consolidated net
sales by distribution channel for each period presk

First Half First Half

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014
Full-price retail stores, outlets and warehousessal 44% 42%
E-commerce 15% 13%
Restaurant 7% 7%
Wholesale 34% 38%
Total 10C% 10C%

Tommy Bahama:

The Tommy Bahama net sales increase of $22.4 millar 7.1% , was primarily driven by (1) an incemtal net sales increase of
$12.6 million associated with the operation of &ddal full-price retail and outlet stores, (2) 8.0 million, or 5%, increase in comparable
store sales, which includes full-price retail stoamd full-price e-commerce sales, to $167.7 miliiothe First Half of Fiscal 2015 from $159.7
million in the First Half of Fiscal 2014 , (3) a.83million increase in restaurant sales resulthogifthe operation of one additional restaurant
and increased sales in existing restaurants aral $8)8 million increase in e-commerce flash cleegasales. These increases in net sales wel
partially offset by a $2.4 million decrease in wéssle sales.

As of August 1, 2015 , we operated 161 Tommy Bahstoi@s globally, consisting of 104 full-price riestores, 15 restaurant-retail
locations and 42 outlet stores. As of August 22@& operated 147 Tommy Bahama stores consistifg &ill-price retail stores, 14
restaurant-retail locations and 39 outlet stores.

The following table presents the proportion of sees by distribution channel for Tommy Bahamaefach period presented:

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014
Full-price retail stores and outlets 51% 50%
E-commerce 14% 13%
Restaurant 11% 11%
Wholesale 24% 26%
Total 100% 10C%

Lilly Pulitzer:

The Lilly Pulitzer net sales increase of $26.7 imill, or 27.6% , was primarily a result of (1) &%L.million, or 31%, increase in
comparable store sales to $66.6 million in thetFiaf of Fiscal 2015 compared to $51.0 milliortlire First Half of Fiscal 2014 , (2) an
incremental net sales increase of $5.3 million @ssed with retail stores opened in Fiscal 2014 Risdal 2015, (3) a $4.9 million increase in
wholesale sales during the First Half of Fiscal®2@hd (4) $0.9 million higher sales
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at the annual warehouse sale. As of August 1, 20dboperated 33 Lilly Pulitzer retail stores comgubto 26 retail stores as of August 2,
2014 .

The following table presents the proportion of sees by distribution channel for Lilly Pulitzerfeach period presented:

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014
Full-price retail stores and warehouse sales 40% 38%
E-commerce 23% 20%
Wholesale 37% 42%
Total 10C% 10C%

Lanier Clothes:

The decrease in net sales for Lanier Clothes & fbllion , or 11.2% , was primarily due to a dexse in net sales in the branded
business partially offset by an increase in a peiVabel pants program for a warehouse club. Theldsales in the branded business was
primarily due to the exit from or reduction in @rt replenishment and other programs.

Corporate and Other:

Corporate and Other net sales in each period pifin@mnsist of the net sales of our Oxford Golf imess and our Lyons, Georgia
distribution center as well as the impact of thmiglation of inter-company sales between operagirggps. The decrease in sales in the First
Half of Fiscal 2015 was primarily due to a reductio Oxford Golf's private label sales.

Gross Profit
The table below presents gross profit by operagimgip and in total for the First Half of Fiscal Z0dnd the First Half of Fiscal 2014
as well as the change between those two periodsg@as profit and gross margin, which is calculade gross profit divided by net sales, may

not be directly comparable to those of our compegjtas statement of operations classificatioredfain expenses may vary by company.

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama $ 205,70¢ $ 194,23: $ 11,47: 5.6 %
Lilly Pulitzer 84,14¢ 64,311 19,83: 30.£%
Lanier Clothes 13,25: 14,38: (1,13)) (7.9%
Corporate and Other 2,37z 3,71C (1,3379) (36.0%
Total gross profit $ 305,47¢ $ 276,64. $ 28,83t 10.£%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ 384 $ (47)

The increase in consolidated gross profit was milgndriven by higher net sales as discussed ablovaddition to the impact of the
changes in net sales, gross profit on a consotidadsis and for each operating group was impagtadebchange in sales mix and gross ma
within each operating group, as discussed below.t@hle below presents gross margin by operatiogmand in total for the First Half of
Fiscal 2015 and First Half of Fiscal 2014 .

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014
Tommy Bahama 60.€% 61.2%
Lilly Pulitzer 68.1% 66.2%
Lanier Clothes 29.8% 28.7%
Corporate and Other NM NM
Consolidated gross margin 59.8% 58.£%
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On a consolidated basis, gross margin increastgeifirst Half of Fiscal 2015 , primarily as a reésd (1) Lilly Pulitzer, which has
higher gross margins than our other operating grorgpresenting a greater proportion of consoltlatg sales, (2) direct to consumer sales
representing a greater proportion of consolidattdsales and (3) improved gross margins in LilljitPer and Lanier Clothes. These favorable
items were partially offset by the lower gross niiaig Tommy Bahama and the net unfavorable imp&tifeO accounting as compared to the
prior period.

Tommy Bahama:

Tommy Bahama's gross margin in the First Half aCki 2015 decreased from the First Half of Fis@dl42. The reduction in gross
margin reflected lower gross margins in both threaito consumer and wholesale channels of disgtoibuwhich offset the favorable impact of
a change in sales mix with direct to consumer sa&lpsesenting a greater proportion of net sales.|@Wwer direct to consumer gross margin
primarily due to a greater proportion of salesum full-price stores and e-commerce website inp#eod occurring in connection with Tommy
Bahama's Friends and Family, loyalty card anddlge events, a greater proportion of total direatdnsumer sales being outlet store and flas
e-commerce sales and more significant in-storeodists in our outlet stores. The lower gross mairgine wholesale business was primarily a
result of a greater proportion of wholesale sakingoff-price sales.

Lilly Pulitzer:

The increase in gross margin for Lilly Pulitzer wagnarily driven by (1) a change in sales mix todgthe direct to consumer
channel of distribution, which typically has higlggpss margins than the wholesale channel of bigidn, (2) higher gross margins in each
channel of distribution and (3) fewer off-priceesain the current year.

Lanier Clothes:

The increase in gross margin for Lanier Clothes pramarily due to fewer markdowns associated wéhain programs in the curre
year as well as a change in sales mix with a greatgportion of sales being higher gross margirgpams.

Corporate and Other:

The gross profit in Corporate and Other in eaclopgosrimarily reflects (1) the gross profit of oDxford Golf and Lyons, Georgia
distribution center operations, (2) the impact t#@ accounting adjustments and (3) the impact dhaeconsolidating adjustments, including
the elimination of inter-company sales between afireg groups. The lower gross profit for Corporatel Other in the First Half of Fiscal 2015
was primarily due to the impact of lower sales tr&lnet unfavorable impact of LIFO accounting. LI&E&ounting resulted in a charge of $0.4
million in the First Half of Fiscal 2015 comparema credit of less than $0.1 million in the FirstlHbf Fiscal 2014 .

SG&A

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

SG&A 242,64 220,780 $ 21,86( 9.5%
SG&A as % of net sales 47.5% 47.(%
Amortization of intangible assets included in Tommy
Bahama associated with Tommy Bahama Canada
acquisition $ 78¢ $ 897

The increase in SG&A was primarily due to (1) castsupport the growing Tommy Bahama and Lilly Belf businesses, (2) $8.8
million of incremental costs in the First Half o6Eal 2015 associated with additional Tommy Bahagtail stores and restaurants and Lilly
Pulitzer stores and (3) $3.4 million of increasecentive compensation in the First Half of Fisdal 2 .

SG&A included $1.0 million of amortization of intgitble assets in the First Half of Fiscal 2015 coradao $1.2 million in the First
Half of Fiscal 2014 . We anticipate that amortiaatof intangible assets for Fiscal 2015 will be ppmately $2.0 million, with approximately
$1.6 million of the amortization related to amaatinn of the intangible assets acquired as patiefTommy Bahama Canada acquisition.
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Royalties and other operating income

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal
2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Royalties and other operating income 7,39 6,56¢ $ 824 12.5%

Royalties and other operating income in the Fitaif ldf Fiscal 2015 primarily reflect income receivieEom third parties from the
licensing of our Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzeabds. The $0.8 million increase in royalties arfteotncome reflects increased royalty
income for both Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer.

Operating income (l0ss)

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama $ 40,91¢ $ 41,62( $ (704) 1.7%
Lilly Pulitzer 37,25¢ 25,977 11,28: 43.L%
Lanier Clothes 3,62 4,27¢ (657) (15.9%
Corporate and Other (11,569 (9,580) (1,989 (20.9%
Total operating income $ 70,22¢ $ 62,29: $ 7,93 12.7%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®@the $ 384 $ (47)
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 78€ $ 897
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiaritided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ — $ 137

The increase in operating income was primarily ulhe higher operating income in Lilly Pulitzerpally offset by lower operating
income in Tommy Bahama and Lanier Clothes and hdnigperating loss in Corporate and Other. Chaimgegerating income (loss) by
operating group are discussed below.

Tommy Bahama:

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Net sales $ 338,51: $ 316,14t $ 22,36: 7.1%
Gross margin 60.£% 61.4%
Operating income $ 40,91¢ $ 41,62( $ (704) 1.7%
Operating income as % of net sales 12.1% 13.2%
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 78¢ $ 897

The lower operating income for Tommy Bahama washarily due to the lower gross margin and higher $G#artially offset by
higher sales. The higher SG&A reflects (1) $6.8iomlof incremental SG&A associated with the cdsbperating additional retail stores and
restaurants, including set-up costs associatedneithstores and restaurants and (2) higher costgpjport the growing Tommy Bahama
business.

Lilly Pulitzer:
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First Half Fiscal  First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 123,65: $ 96,93¢ $ 26,71t 27.€%
Gross margin 68.1% 66.2%
Operating income $ 37,25¢ $ 25977 $ 11,28: 43.4%
Operating income as % of net sales 30.1% 26.8%
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ — % 137

The increase in operating income in Lilly Pulitaeas primarily due to the higher net sales and gmesgjin. These items were parti
offset by increased SG&A. The increased SG&A wasarily associated with (1) higher costs to suppleetgrowing business, reflecting
increased infrastructure costs and advertising rsgag(2) $2.0 million of incremental SG&A assoaiktgth the cost of operating additional
retail stores and (3) $1.6 million of higher indeatcompensation.

Lanier Clothes:

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 44.47¢  $ 50,06 $ (5,58¢) (11.9%
Gross margin 29.8% 28.71%
Operating income $ 3,62¢ $ 4278 3 (657) (15.2)%
Operating income as % of net sales 8.1% 8.5%

The lower operating income for Lanier Clothes wamarily due to the reduction in net sales panialifset by higher gross margin
and lower SG&A.

Corporate and Other:
First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal
2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 4,441 $ 6,96 $ (2,529 (36.9%
Operating loss $ (11,569 $ (9,580 $ (1,989 (20.8)%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®@the $ 384 $ (47)

The lower operating results in Corporate and Owvee primarily due to the lower net sales in OxfGualf's private label business,
higher incentive compensation expense and therniavarable impact of LIFO accounting in the Firstltbf Fiscal 2015 compared to the First
Half of Fiscal 2014 .

I nterest expense, net

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal
2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Interest expense, net $ 151z $ 1,85¢ $ (34¢) (18.9%

Interest expense for the First Half of Fiscal 2d&6reased from the prior year primarily due to loaserage borrowings outstanding
and lower borrowing rates during the First Halfigcal 2015 compared to the First Half of Fiscal20

I ncome taxes
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Eirst Half Fiscal  First Half Fiscal
2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Income taxes $ 26,34¢ $ 24,087 $ 2,257 9.4%
Effective tax rate 38.2% 39.%

Income tax expense for the First Half of Fiscal2@1icreased, reflecting higher earnings partiaffged by a lower effective tax rate.
The lower effective tax rate in the First Half aé€al 2015 compared to the First Half of Fiscal2@timarily resulted from higher domestic
earnings and reductions in foreign losses. Oucttfe tax rate for the full year of Fiscal 201%eigpected to generally be comparable to the
effective tax rate incurred in the First Half o6€al 2015 .

Net earnings from continuing operations

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014
Net earnings from continuing operations $ 42,37 % 36,34"
Net earnings from continuing operations per dilligbdre $ 2.5€ $ 2.21
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 16,53¢ 16,45¢

The primary reasons for the higher net earning®s ftontinuing operations in the First Half of Fis28lL5 were higher operating
income in Lilly Pulitzer, partially offset by lowaperating income in Tommy Bahama and Lanier Clp#ral a larger operating loss in
Corporate and Other, each as discussed above.

Discontinued operations

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ (6,700 $ (6,309 $ (392 (6.2%
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net afgax $ (20,43) $ — $ (20,43)) (100.0%
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ (27,139 $ (6,309 $ (20,829 (330.0)%

The larger net loss from discontinued operatior$ofitaxes in the First Half of Fiscal 20@%4s primarily due to the loss on sale of
Ben Sherman operations in the Second Quarter cdF2915.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S

Our primary source of revenue and cash flow issdle and distribution of apparel and other relgiediucts through our direct to
consumer and wholesale channels of distribution.@imary uses of cash flow include the purchasgrotiucts in the operation of our
business, as well as operating expenses includinoyee compensation and benefits, occupancy-tetaists, marketing and advertising
costs, other general and administrative expensgthanpayment of periodic interest payments reltdeslr financing arrangements.
Additionally, we use cash for the funding of capéapenditures and dividends and repayment of itetitess. In the ordinary course of
business, we maintain certain levels of inventory extend credit to our wholesale customers. Tives,equire a certain amount of working
capital to operate our business. If cash inflovesless than cash outflows, we have access to asiander our revolving credit agreement,
subject to its terms, which is described below.Mé&y seek to finance our future cash requirementsith various methods, including, but not
limited to, cash flow from operations, borrowingsder our current or additional credit facilitieales of debt or equity securities and cash on
hand.

As of August 1, 2015, we had $13.7 million of casid cash equivalents on hand, with $45.0 millibbasrowings outstanding and
$182.1 millionof availability under our U.S. Revolving Credit A&ggiment. We believe our balance sheet and antidipatstive cash flow fror
operating activities in the future provide us watple opportunity to continue to invest in our lalsuand our direct to consumer initiatives in
future periods.

Key Liquidity Measures
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($ in thousands) August 1, 2015 January 31, 2015 August 2, 2014 February 2, 2014
Total current assets $ 225,01 % 282,96¢ $ 250,33t $ 271,03.
Total current liabilities $ 117,53¢ $ 159,94 $ 131,68: $ 133,04¢
Working capital $ 107,47¢ % 123,027 $ 118,65¢ $ 137,98t
Working capital ratio 1.91 1.77 1.9C 2.04
Debt to total capital ratio 12% 27% 27% 35%

Our working capital ratio is calculated by dividit@jal current assets by total current liabiliti€sirrent assets decreased from
August 2, 2014 to August 1, 20psmarily due to the disposal of the discontinugpémtions during the Second Quarter of Fiscal Jt&ally
offset by increases in other current assets. Trgusi2, 2014 balance sheet included $48.9 millforuerent assets related to discontinued
operations with no meaningful current assets rdladediscontinued operations as of August 1, 20C6rrent liabilities decreased primarily due
to (1) the $12.4 million reduction in contingents@eration and (2) the disposal of the discontinogerations during the Second Quarter of
Fiscal 2015, resulting in a decrease in currebflites related to discontinued operations frord $1million to $6.9 million , which were
partially offset by increases in other currentilitibs. Changes in current assets and currentlili@s are discussed below.

For the ratio of debt to total capital, debt isidefl as short-term and lorigrm debt included in continuing operations, andltoapita
is defined as debt plus shareholders' equity. Baist$45.0 million at August 1, 2015 and $106.5iorillat August 2, 2014 , while shareholders
equity was $324.7 million at August 1, 2015 and%28nillion at August 2, 2014 . The decrease int geimnarily resulted from the $59.3
million of proceeds related to the disposal of Edrerman as the net impact of positive cash floas fcontinuing operations were generally
offset by the cash paid for capital expenditurégddnds and contingent consideration during thiéope Shareholders' equity increased from
August 2, 2014 , primarily as a result of net ergsiand the impact of shares issued pursuant tstock plans less dividends paid and the
change in accumulated other comprehensive losagltitat period. Our debt levels and ratio of delibtal capital in future periods may not
comparable to historical amounts as we continuassess, and possibly make changes to, our capitaluse. Changes in our capital structure
in the future, if any, will depend on prevailing rkat conditions, our liquidity requirements, cowrtial restrictions and other factors. The
amounts involved may be material.

Balance Sheet

The following tables set forth certain informatimeluded in our consolidated balance sheets (ingands). Below each table are
explanations for any significant changes in thebea¢s from August 2, 2014 to August 1, 2015 .

Current Assets:

August 1, 2015 January 31, 2015 August 2, 2014 February 2, 2014
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,66. $ 5281 $ 6,41¢ $ 8,48:
Receivables, net 57,10¢ 64,58’ 46,91: 61,32¢
Inventories, net 104,78t 120,61: 107,86t 117,09(
Prepaid expenses, net 22,16: 19,94: 18,22¢ 19,03(
Deferred tax assets 27,24¢ 24,42¢ 21,99¢ 20,37¢
Assets related to discontinued operations, net 49 48,12: 48,92 44,72¢
Total current assets $ 225,01 $ 282,96¢ $ 250,33¢ $ 271,03:

Cash and cash equivalents as of August 1, 201%ighsr than our typical cash amounts maintainedronngoing basis in our
operations, which generally ranges from $5 millior$10 million at any given time. Any excess castypically used to repay amounts
outstanding under our revolving credit agreemdnisdue to the receipt of cash late in the quamer cash in foreign locations, certain cash
amounts were not utilized to reduce outstanding detil after quarter end.

The increase in receivables, net as of August 15 2@as primarily a result of higher receivables ftoen landlords reflecting the
more significant leasehold improvement build oudtsavhich had not been reimbursed as of quarterasndell as higher credit card
receivables. Inventories, net as of August 1, 2fd&eased from August 2, 2014 primarily as a refutiwer inventories in Lanier Clothes
reflecting lower anticipated sales and lower inegpievels in certain replenishment

27




Table of Contents

programs, which were partially offset by increasaantories in Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer tgpport anticipated sales increases,
particularly in the direct to consumer channelslisfribution. The increase in prepaid expensesanaugust 1, 2015 from August 2, 2014 was
primarily due to an increase in prepaid income sasa®well as the growth in our business and thiagimf payment and recognition of the
related expense for certain prepaid items includamg, advertising and samples.

Deferred tax assets increased from August 2, 2@itdapily reflecting the impact of higher incentigcempensation amounts, changes
in certain reserves and a change in timing diffeesrassociated with inventory, due in part to aii@ant LIFO accounting charge in the
Fourth Quarter of Fiscal 2014. The decrease inssskated to discontinued operations, net refleatsdisposition of the Ben Sherman
discontinued operations during the Second QuaftEiscal 2015.

Non-current Assets:

August 1, 2015 January 31, 2015 August 2, 2014 February 2, 2014

Property and equipment, net $ 170,28: $ 146,03¢ $ 136,18( $ 133,32:
Intangible assets, net 145,01( 146,13! 148,26« 149,16¢
Goodwill 17,25¢ 17,29¢ 17,44 17,39¢
Other non-current assets, net 22,750 22,52¢ 23,53¢ 23,12
Assets related to discontinued operations, net — 31,74° 33,310 33,26:
Total non-current assets $ 355,30( $ 363,74! $ 358,74. $ 356,27:

The increase in property and equipment, net at Augu2015 from August 2, 2014 primarily reflecépital expenditures in the
twelve months ended August 1, 2015 partially offsetiepreciation expense subsequent to Augusti2l 26 well as the impact of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates during that pefib@. decrease in intangible assets, net at Augu@i1bwas primarily due to the amortizat
of intangible assets subsequent to August 2, 2@%4nell as the impact of foreign currency exchamages on certain intangible assets. The
decrease in assets related to discontinued opesatiet reflects our disposition of the Ben Sherdhiaoontinued operations in the Second
Quarter of Fiscal 2015.

Liabilities:

August 1, 2015 January 31, 2015 August 2, 2014 February 2, 2014
Total current liabilities $ 117,53¢ $ 159,94 $ 131,68: $ 133,04t
Long-term debt 45,00( 104,84. 106,51¢ 137,59:
Non-current contingent consideration — — — 12,22t
Other non-current liabilities 63,42( 56,28’ 50,22: 49,81:
Non-current deferred income taxes 29,70( 29,46" 29,30¢ 28,01¢
Non-current liabilities related to discontinued ogi®ns — 5,571 5,86% 6,452
Total liabilities $ 255,65¢ $ 356,10¢ $ 323,59. $ 367,14,

Current liabilities as of August 1, 2015 decreasaaipared to August 2, 2014 reflecting (1) the $1@ilion reduction of contingent
consideration as a result of the First Quarterieé& 2015 payment of the final contingent consaitien amounts associated with the Lilly
Pulitzer acquisition, (2) our disposition of therB8herman discontinued operations, which reduedylities related to discontinued operations
by $8.0 million and (3) a decrease in accounts Iplayaf $4.1 million . These decreases were paytifiset by an increase in accrued
compensation of $6.9 million , with the majoritytbe increase in accrued compensation relatedltoRulitzer, and an increase in other
accrued expenses and liabilities.

The decrease in long-term debt primarily resultedhfthe $59.3 million of proceeds received fromsht of Ben Sherman in the
Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015 as the net impagositive cash flows from continuing operations weffset by the cash paid for capital
expenditures, dividends and contingent consideratioing the period.

Other non-current liabilities increased as of Audgy2015 compared to August 2, 2014 primarily thuancreases in deferred rent
liabilities, including tenant improvement allowasdeom landlords. The decrease in liabilities redato
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discontinued operations reflects our dispositiothefBen Sherman discontinued operations in ther®@eQuarter of Fiscal 2015.
Statement of Cash Flows

The following table sets forth the net cash floims|uding continuing and discontinued operations,the First Half of Fiscal 2015
and First Half of Fiscal 2014 (in thousands):

First Half Fiscal First Half Fiscal

2015 2014
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 72,73, $ 59,91«
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 17,91 (19,57¢)
Net cash used in financing activities (82,807 (42,05¢)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 7,841 $ (1,71%)

Cash and cash equivalents on hand were $13.7 mdhal $6.4 million at August 1, 2015 and Augus2@14 , respectively. Changes
in cash flows in the First Half of Fiscal 2015 ahd First Half of Fiscal 2014 related to operatigvities, investing activities and financing
activities are discussed below.

Operating Activities:

In the First Half of Fiscal 2015 and First Halflibcal 2014 , operating activities provided $72ilfiom and $59.9 million of cash,
respectively. The cash flow from operating actastivas primarily the result of net earnings forréflevant period adjusted, as applicable, for
non-cash activities including depreciation, amaitian, equity-based compensation expense, losaleroédiscontinued operations and the ne
impact of changes in our working capital accoulmshe First Half of Fiscal 2015 the more significghanges in cash flow were a decrease ir
inventories, net and receivables, net and an iserganon-current liabilities, each of which incged cash flow from operations and a decreas
in current liabilities which decreased cash floanfroperations. In the First Half of Fiscal 2014 there significant changes in cash flow we
decrease in receivables, net and inventorieseaet) of which increased cash flow from operatiomsadecrease in current liabilities which
decreased cash flow from operations.

Investing Activities:

During the First Half of Fiscal 2015 and First HaffFiscal 2014 , investing activities provided $illion and used $19.6 million
of cash, respectively. In the First Half of Fis2all5 , we obtained $59.3 million of proceeds fa $ale of our Ben Sherman business, which
was partially offset by the use of $41.4 milliom &apital expenditures, which primarily relatecdctists associated with new retail stores and
restaurants; information technology initiativegliding e-commerce enhancements; and retail stateestaurant remodeling and facility
enhancements, including the build-out of Tommy Ba&'a new office in Seattle and the acquisitiondafiional distribution center space for
Lilly Pulitzer. In the First Half of Fiscal 2014a]l investing cash flow activities consisted of @apital expenditures.

Financing Activities:

During the First Half of Fiscal 2015 and First HaffFiscal 2014 , financing activities used $82i8iom and $42.1 million of cash,
respectively. In the First Half of Fiscal 2015 , decreased debt as cash provided by our operattiitias and the proceeds from the sale of
Ben Sherman exceeded our cash requirements faatappenditures, contingent consideration paymantsdividends. In the First Half of
Fiscal 2014 , we decreased debt as cash providedryperating activities exceeded our cash remeres for capital expenditures, dividends
and contingent consideration payments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had $45.0 million of borrowings outstanding #éwogust 1, 2015 under our $235 million U.S. RewolvCredit Facility ("U.S.
Revolving Credit Agreement"). The U.S. Revolving@it Agreement generally (i) is limited to a boring/ base consisting of specified
percentages of eligible categories of assetsagitfues variable-rate interest (weighted averagewing rate of 1.7% as of August 1, 2015),
unused line fees and letter of credit fees based apricing grid which is tied to average unuseailability and/or utilization, (jii) requires
periodic interest payments with principal due aturity (November 2018) and (iv) is generally secuby a first priority security interest in the
accounts receivable, inventory, general
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intangibles and eligible trademarks, investmenpprty (including the equity interests of certaibhsidiaries), deposit accounts, inter-company
obligations, equipment, goods, documents, contracisks and records and other personal propei®xédrd Industries, Inc. and substantially
all of its domestic subsidiaries.

To the extent cash flow needs exceed cash flowigeohvby our operations we will have access, sultgeits terms, to our line of
credit to provide funding for operating activitiegpital expenditures and acquisitions, if any. €redit facility is also used to finance trade
letters of credit for product purchases, which pedilhe amounts available under our line of cretlignvissued. As of August 1, 2015 , $4.5
million of letters of credit were outstanding agdiour U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement. After calesing these limitations and the amount of
eligible assets in our borrowing base, as appl&as of August 1, 2015 , we had $182.1 millionnsed availability under the U.S.
Revolving Credit Agreement, subject to the certanitations on borrowings.

Covenants and Other Restrictions:

Our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement is subject tmaber of affirmative covenants regarding thewali of financial information,
compliance with law, maintenance of property, iasiwe requirements and conduct of business. Algagredit facility is subject to certain
negative covenants or other restrictions includargpng other things, limitations on our ability(fpincur debt, (ii) guaranty certain
obligations, (iii) incur liens, (iv) pay dividends shareholders, (v) repurchase shares of our constoek, (vi) make investments, (vii) sell
assets or stock of subsidiaries, (viii) acquireetssr businesses, (ix) merge or consolidate vibracompanies or (x) prepay, retire, repurcl
or redeem debt.

Additionally, our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreememtrtains a financial covenant that applies if unueedilability under the U.S.
Revolving Credit Agreement for three consecutivesda less than the greater of (i) $23.5 millior(igr10% of the total revolving
commitments. In such case, our fixed charge coeeratio as defined in the U.S. Revolving Credit@gment must not be less than 1.0 to 1.0
for the immediately preceding 12 fiscal monthsvidnich financial statements have been delivereds Tihancial covenant continues to apply
until we have maintained unused availability unither U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement of more thamdheater of (i) $23.5 million or
(ii) 10% of the total revolving commitments for 86nsecutive days.

We believe that the affirmative covenants, negatweenants, financial covenants and other resiristunder our U.S. Revolving
Credit Agreement are customary for those incluaesirilar facilities entered into at the time weerad into our agreement. During the First
Half of Fiscal 2015 and as of August 1, 2015 ,inaricial covenant testing was required pursuanutdJ.S. Revolving Credit Agreement as
the minimum availability threshold was met at allés. As of August 1, 2015 , we were compliant vaihlcovenants related to our U.S.
Revolving Credit Agreement.

Other Liquidity Items:

We anticipate that we will be able to satisfy ongoing cash requirements, which generally congistasking capital and other
operating activity needs, capital expendituregriedt payments on our debt and dividends, if anmagily from positive cash flow from
operations supplemented by borrowings under oardircredit. Our need for working capital is typigaeasonal with the greatest
requirements generally in the fall and spring aftegear. Our capital needs will depend on manyofadncluding our growth rate, the need to
finance inventory levels and the success of oupuarproducts. We anticipate that at the maturitgry of our U.S. Revolving Credit
Agreement or as otherwise deemed appropriate, Wéevable to refinance the facility and debt withms available in the market at that time.
The terms of any future financing arrangements nmatybe as favorable as the terms of the curremtesgent or current market terms.

Our contractual obligations as of August 1, 201%8ehaot changed materially from the contractualgdiions outstanding at
January 31, 2015, as disclosed in our Annual RepoForm 10-K for Fiscal 2014 filed with the SEgEher than changes in the amounts
outstanding under our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreetnas discussed above and the satisfaction amin@ion of our prior U.K. revolving
credit agreement in connection with our sale ofBka Sherman business.

Our capital expenditures for Fiscal 2015 , inclgdihe $41.4 million incurred in the First Half o6Eal 2015 , are expected to be
approximately $70 million compared to $50.4 millifmm the full year of Fiscal 2014 . These expen@itunclude investments associated with
the new leased space for Tommy Bahama'’s Seatiteepthe Waikiki retail-restaurant location, andigidnal distribution space for Lilly
Pulitzer, as well as new retail stores, informatiechnology initiatives and store remodeling. Gf $70 million of capital expenditures,
approximately $13 million is expected to be funtdgdandlords through tenant improvement allowances.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
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We have not entered into agreements which me&H@&s definition of an off balance sheet financamgangement, other than
operating leases, and have made no financial camenits to or guarantees with respect to any uncidiadet! subsidiaries or special purpose
entities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The discussion and analysis of our financial caodiaind results of operations are based upon aweartsed consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeitit€&AAP. The preparation of these financial sta¢ats requires us to make estimates
judgments that affect the reported amounts of askabilities, revenues and expenses and relagetbdures. On an ongoing basis, we eval
our estimates, including those related to receasbhventories, goodwill, intangible assets, inedaxes, contingencies and other accrued
expenses. We base our estimates on historicaliexgerand on various other assumptions that arevieel to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuesssiss and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results m&gmdifom these estimates under different assumsgtiorconditions. We believe that we have
appropriately applied our critical accounting pag However, in the event that inappropriate aggioms or methods were used relating to ou
critical accounting policies, our consolidated estaénts of operations could be misstated. Our aliiccounting policies and estimates are
discussed in Part Il, Item 7, Management’'s Disarsaind Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft®perations in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 . There have not beensggificant changes to the application of ouricaitaccounting policies and estimates
during the First Half of Fiscal 2015 .

Additionally, a detailed summary of significant aoating policies is included in Note 1 to our cdigated financial statements
contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K forceis?014 .

SEASONAL ASPECTS OF OUR BUSINESS

Each of our operating groups is impacted by seditpiaa the demand by specific product or stylewa$i as by distribution channel, m
vary significantly depending on the time of yeaor Betails of the impact of seasonality on eacbusfoperating groups, see the business
discussion under the caption "Seasonal AspectasinBss" for each operating group as discussedrin Atem 1, Business in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 he following table presents our percentage vfakes and operating income from continuing ojp@ms
by quarter for Fiscal 2014 :

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales 26% 25% 22% 27%
Operating income 35% 32% 5% 28%

We anticipate that as our retail store operatiansesiase in the future, the third quarter will coné to be our smallest net sales and
operating income quarter and the percentage dithgear net sales and operating income genetiatéte third quarter will continue to
decrease, absent any other factors that might inge@sonality. As the timing and magnitude of éemmusual or non-recurring items,
economic conditions, wholesale product shipmengsather or other factors affecting the retail bussn@ay vary from one year to the next, we
do not believe net sales or operating income fgrgarticular quarter or the distribution of netesabind operating income for Fiscal 2014 are
necessarily indicative of anticipated results far full fiscal year or expected distribution indtg years.

Additionally, the Fourth Quarter of Fiscal 2014lued a LIFO accounting charge of $2.6 million whreduced operating income, and
no significant LIFO accounting charges in the ottpeairters of Fiscal 2014.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB  OUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain interest rate, foreigreagy, commodity and inflation risks as discusisedart Il, ltem 7A, Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk im &ummnual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 . T&hnbave not been any significant
changes in our exposure to these risks during itisé FHalf of Fiscal 2015 except that as a resuthefdisposal of Ben Sherman, we no longer
have any exposure related to our prior U.K. revaiviredit agreement and no longer have any formigrency forward exchange contracts as
of August 1, 2015 Further, as a result of our disposal of the Bear@an operations, we no longer have any signifioparations in the Unite
Kingdom or Europe with our only significant intetizanal operations now being Tommy Bahama's oparatio Canada and the Asia Pacific
region, which in the aggregate represented less3f@of our consolidated net sales in Fiscal 2014.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and our principadencial officer have evaluated the effectivendssun disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period coveretiibyé¢port. Based upon that evaluation, our prisogxecutive officer and our principal
financial officer concluded that, as of the endhaf period covered by this report, our disclosungtiols and procedures were effective in
ensuring that information required to be disclobgdis in our Securities Exchange Act reports isméed, processed, summarized and reporte
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s sutand forms, and that such information is accuredland then communicated to our
management, including our principal executive @ffiand principal financial officer, as appropridateallow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dvwancial reporting during the Second Quarter achl 2015 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, we may becarbgest to litigation or claims. We are not currgrdlparty to any litigation or
regulatory action that we believe could reasonakelgxpected to have a material adverse effect ofir@ancial position, results of operations
cash flows.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to numerous risks. Investoould carefully consider the factors discused®art I, ltem 1A. Risk Factors
our Annual Report on Form 1Kfor Fiscal 2014, which could materially affectrdusiness, financial condition or operating resulfhe risk
described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K forcBls2014, as amended and updated in this Form®,18e not the only risks facing «
company.

The following is an update to the risk factor inr @dnnual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 untlex caption, There are risk
associated with the announcement of our pursustrategic alternatives to sell our Ben Shermanaifmers, which could adversely affect
ongoing operations, divert management’s attenti@hreegatively impact our results of operations.”

There arerisks associated with the sale of our former Ben Sherman business, including the possibility that we may incur unexpected
liabilities or be unable to efficiently deploy our resourcesin the future.

On March 26, 2015, we announced that we were pugsalisale of our former Ben Sherman business. tréhsaction was complet
on July 17, 2015.

Although the proceeds of the transaction, othem imounts subject to adjustment based on among thiihgs the actual debt and
working capital of the Ben Sherman business onctbsing date, have been paid to us, the purchasealperiod following the transactien’
closing during which it may assert claims againstim respect of our warranties under the sale aggae As a result, we may becc
responsible for unexpected liabilities, some ofcakhinay be triggered or increased by the purchasgrération of the Ben Sherman busi
following the transaction. These liabilities, imidiually or in the aggregate, could adversely dffear financial condition and results
operations.

Also, our sale of the Ben Sherman business maytiiesunderutilization of our retained resourcesxited operations are not repla
with new lines of business either internally orotingh acquisition, which may also occur as we windid transitional support services we
continuing to provide to the purchaser of the Baer&an business. There can be no guarantee thatlive able to replace the sales rel:
to our former Ben Sherman business or appropriat#lige our remaining resources, which may advgreepact our results of operations.

In addition, as part of the sale transaction, @tians under certain Ben Shermatated contracts, including real property leaséth
third parties were transferred as part of the @atisn. In certain situations, we may remain seaoihdliable for Ben Shermas’obligation
under these contracts, and any liabilities we cénddr would be triggered by the purchaser or tke Bherman business following the clo:
of the transaction. Although we may be entitledeimedies against the purchaser
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if we incur any such liabilities, there can be sswances that we will be able to enforce or cblidlor any portion of the liabilities we suff
which may be material.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) During the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015 , we didmake any unregistered sales of our equity seestri

(c) We have certain stock incentive plans as desciib®tbte 7 to our consolidated financial statemémttuded in our Annual Report «
Form 10-K for Fiscal 2014 , all of which are pubfiannounced plans. Under the plans, we can repaeckhares from employees to
cover employee tax liabilities related to the vegtf equity awards. During the Second Quarterieddt 2015 , no shares were
purchased by us pursuant to these plans.

In Fiscal 2012, our Board of Directors authorizedaispend up to $50 million to repurchase sharesiostock. This authorization
superseded and replaced all previous authorizatiorepurchase shares of our stock and has no atitoexpiration. As of August 1, 2015, no
shares of our stock had been repurchased pursutdns tauthorization.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

2.1

3.1

3.2

31.1
31.2

32
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of the Ergigeld Share Capital of Ben Sherman Limited and 180%e Limited
Liability Company Interests in Ben Sherman Clothing®, dated July 17, 2015, between the CompanyBemSherman UK
Acquisition Limited. Incorporated by reference tohiibit 2.1 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on JAR;, 2015.

Restated Articles of Incorporation of Oxford Indies, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit t&.the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August Z®3

Bylaws of Oxford Industries, Inc., as amended. ipocated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Compmfprm 10-K filed on
March 31, 2014.

Section 302 Certification by Principal ExecutivefiCdr.*

Section 302 Certification by Principal Financialfioér.*

Section 906 Certification by Principal ExecutivefiGdr and Principal Financial Officer.*
XBRL Instance Document*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuttie

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurtten

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenth

* Filed herewith.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdéport to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
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September 3, 2015

OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
(Registrant)

/sl K. Scott Grassmyer

K. Scott Grassmyer
Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief FinanGiticer and Controller
(Authorized Signatory)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND SECTIO N 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas C. Chubb lll, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Oxfbrdustries, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registragtnos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 3, 2015 /sl Thomas C. Chubb Il

Thomas C. Chubb Il

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND SECTIO N 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, K. Scott Grassmyer, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Oxfbrdustries, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registragtnos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 3, 2015 /sl K. Scott Grassmyer

K. Scott Grassmyer

Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief FinanG#fiicer and Controller
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Oxfordlustries, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q (“Fote+Q”) for the quarter ended
August 1, 2015 as filed with the Securities andaxge Commission on the date hereof, |, Thomash@bk 111, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, and I, K. Scott Grassniezcutive Vice President - Finance, Chief Finah@ifficer and Controller of the

Company, each certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SedtRb0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dhieaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my
knowledge:

(1) The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Thomas C. Chubb llI

Thomas C. Chubb IlI

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
September 3, 2015

/sl K. Scott Grassmyer
K. Scott Grassmyer

Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief FinanGifficer and Controller
September 3, 2015




